
 
City of Monticello, Iowa 

www.ci.monticello.ia.us 
Posted on December 28, 2021 at 3:00 p.m. 

Monticello City Council Meeting January 3, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m.  
Monticello Renaissance Center, 220 E. 1st Street, Monticello, Iowa 

 
Mayor:  Dave Goedken  Staff:  
City Council:    City Administrator:       Russell Farnum 
At Large: Wayne Peach  City Clerk/Treas.:      Sally Hinrichsen 
At Large: Brenda Hanken  Police Chief:       Britt Smith 
Ward #1: Scott Brighton  City Engineer:       Patrick Schwickerath 
Ward #2: Candy Langerman Public Works Dir.:      Nick Kahler 
Ward #3: Chris Lux  Water/Wastewater Sup.:  Jim Tjaden 
Ward #4: Tom Yeoman  Park & Rec Director:      Jacob Oswald 
     Library Director:      Michelle Turnis 
 
- Call to Order – 6:00 P.M. 
- Pledge of Allegiance 
- Roll Call 
- Agenda Addition/Agenda Approval 
 
Open Forum: If you wish to address the City Council on subjects pertaining to today’s 
meeting agenda please wait until that item on the agenda is reached.  If you wish to address 
the City Council on an item not on the agenda, please approach the lectern and give your 
name and address for the public record before discussing your item. Individuals are normally 
limited to speaking for no more than three (3) minutes on a topic and the Open Forum is by 
rule limited to a total of twenty (20) minutes. 
 
Consent Agenda (These are routine items and will be enacted by one motion without 
separate discussion unless someone requests an item removed to be considered separately.) 
 
Approval of Council Mtg. Minutes    December  20, 2021 
Approval of Payroll      December  30, 2021,   
Approval of Bill List 
Approval of Kardes 151 liquor license 
 
 
Public Hearings:  

 
1. Public Hearing on proposed Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak 

Street Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing Development 
Agreement 

 
2. Resolution To Approve Development Agreement between City of Monticello and 

Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak Street Commercial Cabinets 
Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing 
 



3. Public Hearing on designation of Amended Monticello Urban Renewal Plan to 
include Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak Street Commercial 
Cabinets Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing Project 

 
4. Resolution To Approve Amendment to Urban Renewal to include Development 

Agreement and Economic Incentives to Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) 
and Oak Street Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing 

 
 
Resolutions: 
 

5. Resolution Designating the Monticello Express as the Official Publication 
Newspaper for City of Monticello 

 
6. Resolution Scheduling a public hearing for January 17, 2022 at 6:00 PM to 

receive input and to preliminarily accept proposal for the purchase of 449 
North Sycamore Street  

 
7. Resolution Approving Agreement for Communication Services Between Jones 

County, Jones County Sheriff, and City of Monticello  
 

8. Resolution approving of sidewalk replacement and cost sharing with Great Jones 
County Fair  
 

 
Reports / Potential Actions: 
 

9. Mayor 
a. Council appointments 
b. Scheduling budget review meetings 
c. Council training 
d. Council goal setting 

10. City Engineer 
11. City Administrator 
12. City Clerk 
13. Public Works Director 
14. Police Chief 
15. Water/Wastewater Superintendent 
16. Park and Recreation Director 
17. Library Director 

 
 

Adjournment:  Pursuant to §21.4(2) of the Code of Iowa, the City has the right to amend 
this agenda up until 24 hours before the posted meeting time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Instructions for the Public 
Due to the Covid-19 Virus the public will be 

admitted into this meeting with limited seating. 
 

The meeting will continue to be broadcast on Mediacom (Local Access Channel) and 
will be accessible via Zoom via the following link. 
 
City of Monticello is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: January 3, 2022 
Time: Jan 3, 2022 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84994929997 
 
Meeting ID: 849 9492 9997 
One tap mobile 
+16465588656,,84994929997# US (New York) 
+13017158592,,84994929997# US (Washington DC) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
Meeting ID: 849 9492 9997 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbTps5ungK 
 



 
Regular Council Meeting  
December 20, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 
Community Media Center 
 
Mayor Brian Wolken called the meeting to order. Council present were: Dave Goedken, 
Brenda Hanken, Candy Langerman, Chris Lux, Scott Brighton and Tom Yeoman. Also 
present were City Administrator Russell Farnum, City Clerk Sally Hinrichsen, Library 
Director Michelle Turnis, Police Chief Britt Smith, Park & Rec Director Jacob Oswald 
and Public Works Director Nick Kahler. The public was invited to attend the meeting in 
person, with limited seating or to participate in the meeting electronically via “Zoom 
Meetings” and were encouraged to communicate from Zoom Meeting via chat, due to the 
heightened public health risks of the Coronavirus Pandemic (COVID-19). The meeting 
did have public attendance, both in-person and via Zoom.  
 
Yeoman moved to approve the agenda, Brighton seconded, roll call unanimous.  
 
Lux moved the consent agenda, Hanken seconded, roll call unanimous. 
 
Yeoman moved to approve Resolution #2021-156 Approving Mary Heeren Tax 
Abatement Application related to Residential Improvements constructed at 500 Locust 
Court, Monticello, Iowa. Lux seconded; roll call unanimous. 
 
Farnum reported Senior Housing has offered to donate the parcel of land by Kleinow 
Field, where the improvements were unintentionally encroached upon their property, to 
remove potential liability. Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2021-157 
Approving and directing City Administrator to accept ownership of Parcel 2021-73, by 
the acceptance of a Quit Claim Deed from Senior Housing, Inc and further approving Plat 
of Survey for Parcels 2021-72 and 2021-73, and directing the City Clerk to see to the 
recordation of said Deed with the Jones County Recorder. Brighton seconded; roll call 
unanimous. 
 
Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2021-158 Scheduling Public Hearing on 
design and environmental information related to the proposed improvements to the City’s 
wastewater treatment system/water supply system.  Lux seconded; roll call unanimous. 
Public Hearing was set for February 7, 2022 at 6 P.M. 
 
Yeoman moved to approve Ordinance #752 amending the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Monticello, Iowa, by amending Chapter 90, Section 07 pertaining to Deposit, third and 
final reading in title only. Hanken seconded. Roll call unanimous. 
 
Langerman moved to approve Ordinance #753 amending the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa, by amending provisions pertaining to House Movers, third and 
final reading in title only. Brighton seconded. Roll call unanimous. 
 
Turnis reported a new storywalk book will be put out this week.  
 
Turnis and Oswald reported there was a great turnout for the Holiday on 1st event and 
thanked everyone for helping and supporting the event. 
 



Regular Council Meeting  
December 20, 2021 
 
 
Kahler reported on recent work completed and the recent storm damage and cleanup. 
 
Smith reported working with IDOT on crosswalk by High School and markings.  Smith 
met with Ben Capron regarding sidewalk and drainage issues at the fairgrounds.  Fair 
Board agreed to bid and make repairs, with City paying for the sidewalk near the entrance 
only.  This will be placed on the next agenda. 
 
Farnum reported the City Offices will be closed this week and next week on Thursday 
and Friday due to the holidays.  There will be no change in the garbage or recycling 
schedules either week. 
 
Hinrichsen reported receiving the computers that were offered by the State Buy-It 
program at no cost to the City. 
 
Wolken thanked the Council and City staff for the last six years and stated it was an 
honor to serve the City. Several also thanked Wolken for his service to the City. 
 
Brighton moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:27 pm.  Council held a Work Session until 
7:22 pm, to review the City Employee Handbook with no formal action taken.  
 
 
 
             
       Brian Wolken, Mayor  
 
 
       
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk  



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

AMBULANCE December 13 - 26, 2021
Jacob Gravel 2,257.01$                672.41$           0.00 0.00 1,619.78$        
Mason Hanson 667.80                     -                   0.00 0.00 520.88             
David Husmann 1,908.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,342.44          
Mary Intlekofer 178.88                     -                   0.00 0.00 107.51             
Lori Lynch 2,722.65                  233.37             0.00 0.00 1,810.17          
Coletta Matson 365.60                     -                   0.00 0.00 310.93             
Chloe Mogensen 548.40                     -                   0.00 0.00 433.46             
Shelly Searles 3,550.67                  1,833.47          0.00 3.75 2,332.57          
Jenna Weih 3,230.42                  1,585.22          0.00 0.00 2,209.45          
Curtis Wyman 2,439.45                  437.85             0.00 3.63 1,651.93          

TOTAL AMBULANCE 17,868.88$              4,762.32$        0.00 7.38 12,339.12$      

CEMETERY December 11 - 24, 2021
Dan McDonald 1,744.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,301.67$        

TOTAL CEMETERY 1,744.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,301.67$        

CITY HALL December 12 - 25, 2021
Cheryl Clark 1,772.00$                -$                 0.00 20.63 1,218.77$        
Russ Farnum 3,653.85                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,495.93          
Sally Hinrichsen 2,614.03                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,648.61          
Nanci Tuel 1,574.40                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,211.35          

TOTAL CITY HALL 9,614.28$                -$                 0.00 20.63 6,574.66$        

LIBRARY December 13 - 26, 2021
Molli Hunter 987.20$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 775.00$           
Penny Schmit 1,188.81                  -                   0.00 0.00 876.01             
Michelle Turnis 1,705.44                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,279.53          

TOTAL LIBRARY 3,881.45$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,930.54$        

MBC December 13 - 26, 2021
Jacob Oswald 2,089.42$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,568.66$        
Shannon Poe 1,664.84                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,143.95          

TOTAL MBC 3,754.26$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,712.61$        

POLICE December 13 - 26, 2021
Zachary Buehler 2,258.36$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,669.79$        
Peter Fleming 2,644.80                  -                   0.00 29.25 1,824.45          
Dawn Graver 2,469.60                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,815.98          
Erik Honda 2,568.82                  -                   0.00 0.75 1,904.13          
Jordan Koos 2,568.82                  -                   24.75 28.25 1,844.45          
Britt Smith 3,071.06                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,249.23          
Madonna Staner 1,576.01                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,192.71          
Brian Tate 2,530.08                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,905.96          

TOTAL POLICE 19,687.55$              -$                 24.75 58.25 14,406.70$      

ROAD USE December 11 - 24, 2021
Zeb Bowser 1,891.15$                147.15$           0.00 0.00 1,389.49$        
Jasper Scott 1,747.15                  63.15               0.00 0.00 1,430.60          

TOTAL ROAD USE 3,638.30$                210.30$           0.00 0.00 2,820.09$        

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - DECEMBER 30, 2021

Page 1 of 2



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - DECEMBER 30, 2021

SANITATION December 11 - 24, 2021
Michael Boyson 1,825.75$                81.75$             0.00 0.00 1,284.02$        
Nick Kahler 2,131.80                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,466.35          

TOTAL SANITATION 3,957.55$                81.75$             0.00 0.00 2,750.37$        

SEWER December 11 - 24, 2021
Tim Schultz 1,992.00$                -$                 0.00 3.50 1,399.40$        
Jim Tjaden 2,461.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,781.80          

TOTAL SEWER 4,453.54$                -$                 0.00 3.50 3,181.20$        

WATER December 11 - 24, 2021
Daniel Pike 1,956.00$                -$                 12.00 28.00 1,403.03$        

TOTAL WATER 1,956.00$                -$                 12.00 28.00 1,403.03$        

TOTAL - ALL DEPTS. 70,555.81$              5,054.37$        36.75 117.76 50,419.99$      

Page 2 of 2













 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  Tom Bagge, on behalf of Oak Street Manufacturing, has requested a tax rebate incentive for 
improvements to land on Welter Drive. This would be an expansion on additional land to the west of 
the Oak Street Manufacturing facility.  
 
Based upon discussions with Oak Street Manufacturing on a proposed expansion of their facilities, 
Staff have prepared a draft Development Agreement for the expansion. At the regular meeting of 
November 15, Council approved a Resolution tentatively approving the terms of the draft agreement, 
and scheduling a public hearing on the Agreement and the proposed Amendment. The public hearing 
must be held prior to approval of the amendment to the City’s Urban Renewal Plan, and approval of 
the Development Agreement. 
 
Background Information:  This project is a third expansion to the Oak Street Manufacturing complex 
on Welter Drive. Bagge would purchase about 2 acres of additional land, and add a 40,000 square foot 
building that would include steel laser cutting, steel press folding, a paint line, a dynamic balancing 
machine, and expand another laminate line. This $1.5 million expansion will add ten to twenty jobs 
with starting pay between $18 and $24 dollars per hour plus benefits ($36-48,000 per year).  
 
The accompanying development agreement provides financial support of the project through a TIF 
property tax rebate, for 10 years, with the rebates being 100% the first year, stepping down in 5% 
increments in subsequent years over the 10-year term. It also includes a land purchase subsidy of 
$20,000 per acre, or $40,000 in total. This follows many of the past agreements the City has approved 
for similar projects.  
 
Projections indicate this would provide an incentive totaling just under $320,000 for the project over 
ten years (the agreement is written with a “not to exceed” amount of $325,000), while generating 

Agenda Item: # 1-4 
Agenda Date: 01/03/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Public Hearing(s) and Resolution(s) to approve a proposed Urban 
Renewal Plan Amendment and subsequent Development Agreement with Oak Street Manufacturing  

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

Resolutions (2) 

Development Agreement 
   

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/28/2021 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



nearly $300,000 in new property tax revenue for the City and other taxing districts (OTD) during that 
same timeframe. Please see the projections, below: 
 

 
 
At the regular meeting of November 23, the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the proposal 
to amend the Urban Renewal Plan to include this project, and recommended approval by a vote of 5-0. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  The anticipated $1.5 million investment with the creation of ten to twenty 
good-paying jobs is a huge benefit to the City.   
 
Approval of the attached resolution(s) is recommended. 
 
 

Tax Year Rebate (%) Total Tax (Increment) Amt Rebated Running Total of Rebate Non-TIF to City/OTD
2023 100 36,105$                          36,105$         36,105$                                 21,046$                       
2024 95 36,105$                          34,300$         70,405$                                 22,851$                       
2025 90 36,105$                          32,494$         102,899$                              24,656$                       
2026 85 36,105$                          30,689$         133,588$                              26,462$                       
2027 80 36,105$                          28,884$         162,472$                              28,267$                       
2028 75 36,105$                          27,079$         189,551$                              30,072$                       
2029 70 36,105$                          25,273$         214,824$                              31,877$                       
2030 65 36,105$                          23,468$         238,292$                              33,683$                       
2031 60 36,105$                          21,663$         259,955$                              35,488$                       
2032 55 36,105$                          19,858$         279,813$                              37,293$                       

Land Grant 40,000$                          319,813$       Total Incentive 291,696$                     



 

 
DATE FOR HEARING ON 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND 
TAX INCREMENT PAYMENTS 

(Oak Street Manufacturing) 

Monticello, Iowa 

January 3, 2022 

 

A meeting of the City Council of the City of Monticello, Iowa, was held at the Monticello 
Renaissance Center, Community Media Room, Monticello, Iowa, 6:00 o’clock p.m., on January 
3, 2022 pursuant to the rules of the Council. 

The Mayor _____________ presided and the roll was called, showing members present 
and absent as follows: 

Present:  _____________________ 

Absent:  ______________________ 

Council Member ____________________introduced the resolution next hereinafter set 
out and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member __________________; and after due 
consideration thereof by the Council, the Mayor put the question upon the adoption of said 
resolution, and the roll being called, the following named Council Members voted: 

Ayes: _______________________________ 

Nays: ________________________________ 

Abstained: ____________________________ 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared said resolution duly adopted, as follows: 



 

RESOLUTION NO.    

To Approve Development Agreement between City of 
 Monticello and Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak Street 

Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Monticello, Iowa (the “City”), pursuant to and in strict 
compliance with all laws applicable to the City, and in particular the provisions of Chapter 403 
of the Code of Iowa, has adopted an Urban Renewal Plan for the Monticello Urban Renewal 
Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”); and 

WHEREAS, this City Council has adopted an ordinance providing for the division of 
taxes levied on taxable property in various Urban Renewal Areas pursuant to Section 403.19 of 
the Code of Iowa and establishing the fund referred to in Subsection 2 of Section 403.19 of the 
Code of Iowa, which fund and the portion of taxes referred to in that subsection may be 
irrevocably pledged by the City for the payment of the principal and interest on indebtedness 
incurred under the authority of Section 403.9 of the Code of Iowa to finance or refinance in 
whole or in part projects in the Urban Renewal Area; and 

WHEREAS, the City proposes to enter into an agreement (the “Development 
Agreement”) with Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak Street Commercial Cabinets 
Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing (the “Tenant”) with respect to the construction of a new 
40,000 square foot manufacturing facility in the City of Monticello, County of Jones, State of 
Iowa, and 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement would provide financial incentives to the 
Developer and/or Tenant,  that include tax rebates and a 2-payment grant payable over a period 
of years in an amount that will not exceed $325,000, under the authority of Section 403.9(1) of 
the Code of Iowa, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council scheduled a public hearing on the proposed Development 
Agreement for tonight’s meeting, January 3, 2022 at 6:00 p.m., and 

WHEREAS, The City Council has held the public hearing as scheduled. 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Monticello, Iowa, on this 3rd day of January, 2022, by the approval of this Resolution, does 
hereby approve the proposed Development Agreement and incentives offered therein. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the City 
of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done this 3rd day 
of January, 2022. 

__________________________________________ 
Dave Goedken, Mayor 
 



 

Attest:________________________________________ 
           Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 



1 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into between the City of Monticello, Iowa (the “City”), 
Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak Street Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba Oak 
Street Manufacturing (the “Tenant”) as of the ________ day of __________, 2022. 

WHEREAS, the City has previously established the Monticello Urban Renewal Area (the 
“Urban Renewal Area”), and has adopted a tax increment ordinance for the Urban Renewal 
Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to acquire certain real property which is situated 
within the Urban Renewal Area and more specifically described on Exhibit A hereto (the 
“Property”), and the Developer will undertake the construction of a 40,000 square foot 
manufacturing facility (the “Project”) on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Tenant is responsible for the payment of the property taxes and has 
requested tax increment financing assistance with respect to the Project for Economic 
Development in a Commercial or Industrial Area; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 15A of the Code of Iowa authorizes cities to provide grants, loans, 
guarantees, tax incentives and other financial assistance to or for the benefit of private persons, 
and the City Council specifically finds as follows: 

1. That a public purpose will reasonably be accomplished by the provision of tax incentives, 
grants, and other financial assistance to the Tenant, including the provision of ten to 
twenty new jobs with livable wages, and an expansion of the tax base of the community.   

2. That the construction of a new 40,000 square foot manufacturing facility will provide 
new tax base to the community, even if a portion of those taxes are rebated for a period of 
time. 

3. That the proposed manufacturing use will create jobs, provide local option sales tax 
proceeds, where customers and employees stop to make purchases before and after their 
work shifts. 

4. The Council has considered the overall impact the proposed development will have on 
the community, weighing the overall benefits of the business, and finds that the benefits 
to the Citizens, Local Businesses, and tax base of the City warrants and justifies the 
incentives and easily outweighs the amount of funds dispensed by way of and consistent 
with the terms of this Development Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

A. Developer and Tenant Covenants 



2 

 1. The Developer agrees to acquire the Property and agrees to construct (or 
cause to be constructed) and maintain the Project on the Property, and to use the completed 
facilities as part of its business operations throughout the term of this Agreement. 

 2. The Tenant agrees to make timely payment of all property taxes as they 
come due throughout the term of this Agreement with respect to the Property and to submit a 
receipt or cancelled check in evidence of each such payment. 

 3. The Developer agrees to the following: (a) Begin construction said facility 
within one (1) year of this Agreement and diligently prosecute the same to completion; (b) 
Provide on-site storm water control as required by City Ordinances. 

4. The Tenant agrees to certify to the City by no later than October 15th of 
each year during the Term, as hereinafter defined, commencing October 15, 20211, an amount 
(The “Tenant’s Estimate”) equal to the estimated Incremental Property Tax Revenues anticipated 
to be paid in the fiscal year immediately following such certification with respect to the taxable 
valuation of the Property. For purposes of this Agreement, Incremental Property Tax Revenues 
are calculated by: 

(1) Determining the consolidated property tax levy (City, County, School, Etc.) then in 
effect with respect to taxation of the Property; 

(2) Reducing the Consolidated Tax Rate by the following to create an “Adjusted Levy 
Rate”: 

 (a) the debt service levies of all taxing jurisdictions, and 

 (b) the school district instructional support and physical equipment plant levies, and 

 (c) any other levies which may be exempted from such calculation by action of the 
Iowa General Assembly. 

(3) Multiplying the resulting Adjusted Levy Rate by any incremental growth in the taxable 
valuation of the Property, as shown on the property tax rolls of Jones County, above 
and beyond the “Base Valuation” which is agreed to total $100,000, resulting in the 
“Estimated Incremental Property Tax Revenues”, and then 

(4) Deducting property tax credits, if any, applicable to the Property from the “Estimated 
Incremental Property Tax Revenues”, to create the “Actual Incremental Property Tax 
Revenues”. 

 The calculations resulting in the Tenant’s Estimate will be set forth on the worksheet 
attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, and submitted to the City for review. The City reserves the 
right to review and request revisions to the Tenant’s Estimate to ensure the accuracy of the 

 
1 The Developer’s Certification by October 15, 2021 will allow the City Clerk to include the amount estimated to be 
due for FY ‘23 in the TIF Certification due by 12/1/2021. The Certification will allow the City to receive necessary 
increment for payments to the developer in FY ’23.  



3 

figures submitted. Any disagreement with regard to the calculations used to arrive at the 
Tenant’s Estimate, and/or the final estimate itself, that cannot be resolved by the Parties, shall be 
decided by and in the sole discretion of the City. The City will provide reasonable assistance to 
the Developer in the completion of this worksheet upon request. 

5. Minimum Assessment Agreement. The Developer and Tenant agree to 
enter into an “Assessment Agreement” in substantially the form attached hereto, marked Exhibit 
C, pursuant to §403.6 of the Iowa Code fixing the minimum assessed valuation of the Property, 
in contemplation of the value to be added by the proposed project, at not less than one-million 
two-hundred fifty thousand dollars ($1,250,000), hereafter referenced as the “Minimum 
Assessed Valuation” as of January 1, 2023, the first valuation date. It is the stated intention of the 
Developer that the Minimum Assessed Valuation shall be established on the Jones County 
property tax rolls as of the First Valuation Date regardless of the then-current degree of 
completion or incompletion of the Project. The Assessment Agreement shall remain in effect 
throughout the Term of this Agreement, as hereinafter defined. 

6. Default Provisions. The following shall be “Events of Default” under this 
Agreement, and the term “Event of Default” shall mean, whenever it is used in this Agreement 
(unless otherwise provided), any one or more of the following events: 

 (1) Failure by the Developer to own and maintain the Project pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

(2) Failure by the Tenant to fully and timely remit payment of property taxes when due 
and owing. 

(3) Failure by the Developer to maintain a tenant in the property, using the property for 
“manufacturing” or similar purpose. 

(4) Failure of the Developer and/or Tenant to comply with Sections A(1) through A(6) of 
this Agreement. 

In the event of a default the City shall provide written notice to the Developer and the 
Tenant, describing the default and the steps necessary to remedy or cure the Default. The 
Developer and Tenant shall be given thirty (30) days from the date of mailing or personal 
service, including the date of mailing or personal service as the case may be, to remedy or cure 
the default or to provide adequate assurances to the City that the Default will be cured on a 
schedule that is agreeable to the City. If the Developer and/or Tenant fails to cure the default or 
provide assurances, the City shall then be authorized to: 

(1) Pursue any action available to it, at law or in equity, in order to enforce the 
terms of this agreement. 

(2) Withhold the Payments provided for under Section B, below.  

B. City’s Covenants 



4 

1. Property Tax Rebate Payments. In recognition of the obligations set out above, the 
City agrees to make 20 semi-annual economic development tax increment payments (the 
“Rebate Payments”) to the Tenant, pursuant to Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa and 
as described below, provided, however, that the aggregate total amount of the Payments, 
including the land grant amount, shall not exceed $325,000 (The “Maximum Payment Total”), 
and all payments under this Agreement shall be subject to annual appropriation by the City 
Council, as further described herein. 

This Agreement is based upon the agreed upon minimum assessment of $1.25 million 
dollars going on the tax rolls as of January 1, 2023.  Based thereon, the first tax payment based 
upon the agreed upon Minimum Assessment valuation would be made in September, 2023. 
Accordingly, the Rebate Payments will be made on or about the 1st of December and the 1st of 
June each fiscal year, beginning on December 1, 2023 and continuing thereafter until all 20 
semi-annual payments have been made or until such earlier time as the aggregate amount of 
Total Payments (as hereinafter defined) made under this Agreement equals $325,000.  All 
payments made under this Agreement shall be subject to annual appropriation by the City 
Council as provided hereunder. 

No payment shall exceed an amount which represents the Incremental Property Tax 
Revenues available to the City with respect to the Property during the six (6) months 
immediately preceding each Payment date. 

Each Rebate Payment shall be in an amount which represents a percentage (the “Annual 
Percentage”) of the Incremental Property Tax Revenues available to the City with respect to the 
Property during the 6 months immediately preceding each Payment date reduced by the 
Repayment Deduction (as hereinafter set forth).  Incremental Property Tax Revenues are 
produced by multiplying the consolidated property tax levy (city, county, school, etc.) times the 
incremental valuation of the Property, then subtracting debt service levies of all taxing 
jurisdictions, subtracting the school district physical plant and equipment levy and subtracting 
any other levies which may be exempted from such calculation by action of the Iowa General 
Assembly.  The Annual Percentages shall be as follows: 

FY  2023-2024: 100% 
 FY  2024-2025: 95% 
 FY  2025-2026: 90% 
 FY  2026-2027: 85% 
 FY  2027-2028: 80% 
 FY  2028-2029: 75% 
 FY  2029-2030: 70% 
 FY  2030-2031: 65% 
 FY  2031-2032: 60% 
 FY  2032-2033: 55% 

  
2. Security and Debt Certification. The Total Payments shall not constitute general 
obligations of the City, but shall be made solely and only from incremental property taxes 



5 

received by the City from the Jones County Treasurer which are attributable to the Property, in 
the case of the Rebate Payments. 

Each Payment shall be subject to annual appropriation by the City Council.  Prior to December 1 
of each year during the term of this Agreement, the City Council shall consider the question of 
obligating for appropriation to the funding of the Payments due in the following fiscal year, an 
amount of tax increment revenues to be collected in the following fiscal year equal to or less than 
the most recent Tenant’s Estimate factored by the Annual Percentage to be in effect in the next 
succeeding fiscal year (the “Appropriated Amount”). 

If in any given fiscal year the City Council determines to not obligate the then-considered 
Appropriated Amount, the City will be under no obligation to fund the Payments scheduled to 
become due in the following fiscal year, and the Developer and/or Tenant will have no rights 
whatsoever to compel the City to make such Payments or to seek damages relative thereto.  A 
determination by the City Council to not obligate funds for any particular fiscal year’s Payments 
shall not render this Agreement null and void and the Developer and/or Tenant may make future 
requests for appropriation. 

In any given fiscal year, if the City Council determines to obligate the then-considered 
Appropriated Amount, then the City Clerk will certify by December 1 of each such year to the 
Jones County Auditor an amount equal to the most recently obligated Appropriated Amount. 

It is the intention and desire of the City Council, at the passage of this Development Agreement, 
that funds will be annually appropriated as contemplated herein absent a finding by the City 
Council of severe hardship to the City. 

 

3. Grant Payments. The City further agrees to make a series of economic development 
grants. (The “Grant Payments”) The Grant Payments and the Rebate Payments are collectively 
referred to as the Total Payments.  The Grant Payments shall be made to the Developer as 
follows: 
 

a. Grant Payments related to Land Purchase:  The City will provide a grant, payable 
in two equal installments, equal to $20,000 per acre of property generally used for 
purposes of the project.  The “Land Purchase” grant will total $40,000, and will be 
paid as follows: 

 
1).  Upon completion of construction and the issuance of an occupancy permit from 
the City with respect to the completed Project a Grant Payment in the amount of 
$20,000. 

 
2).  At the first year anniversary of the issuance of the occupancy permit, so long as 
the Developer is not in default on any term of this agreement, The Developer will 
receive a second Grant Payment in the amount of $20,000. 
 

b. Assignment: The Developer may assign payment of this grant to the Tenant. 
 



6 

C. Administrative Provisions 

1. Amendment and Assignment: This Agreement may not be amended, assigned, assumed, 
sold or otherwise transferred without the prior written consent of the other party, except between 
Tenant and Developer. However, the City hereby gives its permission that the Developer’s 
and/or Tenant’s rights to receive the Payments hereunder may be assigned by the Developer 
and/or Tenant to a private lender, as security on a credit facility taken with respect to the Project, 
without further action on the part of the City. 

2. Successors: This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

3. Term: The term of this agreement shall commence on the Commencement Date and end 
after payment of the anticipated 20 semi-annual payments or on such earlier date upon which the 
aggregate sum of Payments made to the Company equals the Maximum Payment Total. 

4. Choice of Law: This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of 
the State of Iowa and for all purposes shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
laws of the State of Iowa. 

5. Force Majeure: Neither Party is responsible for any failure to perform its obligations of 
satisfy a condition under this agreement upon the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event. When 
the nonperforming party is able to resume performance or satisfy the conditions, it will promptly 
give the other party written notice to that effect and shall resume performance under this 
agreement. For the purposes of this agreement, a “Force Majeure Event” is an act or event that 
(i) prevents the nonperforming party from performing its obligations under this agreement or 
satisfying any conditions to the performing party under this agreement; (ii) is beyond the 
reasonable control of and not the fault of the nonperforming party; and (iii) is beyond the 
nonperforming party’s ability to avoid or overcome by the exercise of commercially reasonable 
due diligence. A Force Majeure Event includes the following, without limitation: an act of war 
(whether declared or not), hostilities, invasion, act of foreign enemies, terrorism, or civil 
disorder; extraordinary shortages in labor or materials; a strike or strikes or other industrial 
action or blockade or embargo or any other form of civil disturbance (whether lawful or not); 
exceptional weather conditions; and discontinuation of electricity supply or other necessary 
utilities to the Property. 

The City and the Developer have caused this Agreement to be signed, and the City’s seal to be 
affixed, in their names and on their behalf by their duly authorized officers, all as of the day and 
date written above. 

CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

 
       By _______________________ 

Dave Goedken, Mayor 
 



7 

Attest:             
             
             
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 

 
 
      
Thomas A Bagge, for Oak Street 
Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba Oak Street 
Manufacturing 
 
Its:  Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Thomas A Bagge, for Frontier Warehousing 
 
Its:  President 



8 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 
 

 Certain real property in the City of Monticello, County of Jones, State of Iowa more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

(TBD) The northernmost 371 feet of the easternmost 250…ish feet of Lot 11 of Welters 
First Addition, a portion of the tract of land having PIN 0234351001 to the City of Monticello, 
County of Jones, State of Iowa. 

 



 
The City of Monticello, Iowa 

 
IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

RESOLUTION #   
 

To Approve Amendment to Urban Renewal Plan to include Development  
Agreement and Economic Incentives to Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak  

Street Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing (the “Tenant”) 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Monticello has previously created the Monticello Urban Renewal 
Area, as subsequently amended, hereinafter referenced as the “Urban Renewal Area”, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council, being been duly advised, has determined it appropriate and 
desirable to amend the Urban Renewal Plan to include the provision of incentives to be paid to 
Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak Street Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba 
Oak Street Manufacturing (the “Tenant”) consistent with a previously approved 
Development Agreement in return for the construction of a new 40,000 square foot 
manufacturing facility in the City of Monticello, County of Jones, State of Iowa, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Council desires to consider all input before making a final decision on the 
proposed amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan, and  
 
WHEREAS, A Public Hearing must be scheduled to allow for public input on the proposed 
amendments, and the public hearing was previously scheduled with appropriate notice 
published in the Monticello Express for tonight, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City of Monticello Planning & Zoning Board previously reviewed the 
proposed amendment and voiced no objections, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Administrator invited the School Superintendent and the County 
Auditor to a meeting to discuss the proposed amendment as required by the Code, and 
 
WHEREAS, No objections have been received from the County, the School, or anyone else to 
the proposed amendment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council in session this 3rd day of 
January, 2022, that the proposed amendment to the Monticello Urban Renewal Plan, 2022 Plan 
Amendment #1, approving an amendment to the plan to provide incentives to the Developer in 
return for the construction of a new 40,000 square foot manufacturing facility, as set out fully in a 
Development Agreement between Frontier Warehousing (the “Developer”) and Oak Street 
Commercial Cabinets Inc. dba Oak Street Manufacturing (the “Tenant”) and the City 
approved by Resolution No. 2022-_____ on January 3, 2022. 

  
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done this 
3rd day of January, 2022. 

 
__________________________________________ 

     Dave Goedken, Mayor 
Attest: 



 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: The City is required, by Code, to designate publication in which official notices 
/publications will be printed. 
 
Background Information: Monticello has historically designated the Express as the official 
newspaper for City publications.  
 
Staff Recommendation:  I recommend that Monticello Express be designated as the official 
newspaper for City of Monticello publications for calendar year 2022.  

Agenda Item: # 5 
Agenda Date: 01/03/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution Designating the Monticello Express as the official publication 
newspaper for the City of Monticello. 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
 
  
 

Proposed Resolution 

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/27/2021 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 



 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #    
 
 

 DESIGNATING THE MONTICELLO EXPRESS AS THE OFFICIAL 
PUBLICATION NEWSPAPER FOR CITY OF MONTICELLO 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated City within Jones 
County, Iowa; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Monticello shall annually designate an official newspaper 
for Publication purposes. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Monticello, Iowa does 
hereby designate the Monticello Express as the official publication newspaper of 
the City of Monticello for the 2022 calendar year. 
 

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great 
Seal for the City of Monticello, Iowa to be 
affixed, this 3rd day of January, 2022. 

 
           
    Dave Goedken, Mayor  
 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: Due to interest from multiple parties, Council has directed Staff to collect proposals from parties 
interested in purchasing the City-owned lot at 449 N. Sycamore. An RFP was prepared (copy attached).  The 
RFP was advertised twice in the Monticello Express, and proposals are due on January 12. The Proposals will be 
included with the packets and considered at the January 17 City Council meeting. 
 
It is recommended that the public hearing be set for January 17, in order to allow the public input upon the 
proposals, and would allow Council action at the same meeting, following the hearing (if warranted).  
 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval of January 17 as the public hearing date is recommended. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item: # 6 
Agenda Date: 01/03/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Setting January 17 as Public Hearing on Proposals for 449 N. Sycamore 
Street 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

Resolution 

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/28/2021 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

 
IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #   

 
Scheduling a public hearing for January 17, 2022 at 6:00 PM to receive input  

and to preliminarily accept a proposal for the purchase of 449 North Sycamore Street 
  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council previously agreed to accept bids/proposals on City owned 
property located 449 North Sycamore Street, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City has received bids/proposals related to the property and based thereon 
finds that a Public Hearing should be scheduled on the proposed sale of the property, and 
 
WHEREAS, At the Public Hearing, the Council will receive and consider public input 
related to the potential sale of said property, and the Council will decide whether or not to 
sell the property, to sell a portion of the property, or to not sell the property at all and the 
conditions, if any, tied to the Council decision. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Monticello, through its’ City 
Council, in session this 3rd day of January, 2022 that a Public Hearing on the proposed sale 
of City owned property located 449 North Sycamore Street should be scheduled for the 
17th day of January, 2022 at 6:00 p.m., with notice to be published in the Monticello Express 
as required by the Iowa Code. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed 
my name and caused the Great Seal for the City of Monticello, 
Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 3rd day of January, 2022. 

    
          
   Dave Goedken, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
     
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 



 
 

Notice 
Request for Proposals 

 
The City of Monticello is accepting proposals for the sale of the City-owned lot at 449 N. 
Sycamore Street (Parcel ID 02-21-436-018). The lot is 75 feet wide and 122 feet deep (more or 
less) and is zoned R-1 Single Family Residential. The lot was previously occupied by a single-
family home, which has been demolished. The property has new water service, sanitary sewer 
service, and sidewalk, which were installed with the Sycamore Street improvements. 
 
Proposals should include the purchase price, proposed plan for development (site plans, building 
elevations, etc.), construction timeframe, and other terms or special requests of the City. 
Proposals should be in keeping with the single-family zoning of this neighborhood. 
 
All proposals are due at City Hall by 5 pm on Wednesday, January 12, 2022.  The City Council 
will hold a hearing to consider the positive impacts to the community of proposals received, at 
the regular meeting of January 17. Criteria used to weigh the proposals includes, but not limited 
to, the following considerations: 
 

1. Highest and Best Use of the lot. 
2. Sale price of the lot. 
3. Taxable basis of the lot. 
4. Fit with the neighborhood. 
5. Timing of improvements. 

 
The City Council will then decide which proposal will bring the greatest benefit to the City. The 
City Council may or may not take action on the 17th, and may or may not ask for any proposal to 
be modified to meet terms agreeable to the City.  
 
Please direct questions to Russ Farnum, City Administrator, at 319-465-3577 or by e-mail at 
rfarnum@ci.monticello.ia.us.  
 

mailto:rfarnum@ci.monticello.ia.us


Shinrichsen
Stamp















 
 

The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

Approving Agreement for Communication Services 
Between Jones County, Jones County Sheriff, and City of Monticello 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated City within Jones County, 
Iowa, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Monticello City Council has previously entered into agreements with 
Jones County and the Jones County Sheriff Department to provide communication 
services to the City, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement with the above entities is subject to renewal annually, with 
the agreement for FY ’23 being presented for approval at the rate of $25,975, an increase 
from the FY ’22 rate of $25,218, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that said agreement should be approved. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the agreement for Communication Services previously mentioned 
herein, and does hereby authorize the Mayor to execute the same on behalf of the City 
Council. 
 
  IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my 

name and caused the Great Seal for the City of Monticello, Iowa 
to be affixed.  Done this 3rd day of January, 2022. 

 
 
         
  Dave Goedken, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis: To approve the replacement and cost sharing for sidewalk repairs at the Monticello City 
Park (Fairgrounds).   

 
 
Background Information:  As proposed at the December 20th, 2021 Council Meeting, there is 
significant damage to the main sidewalk path beginning near the 7th Street Fairgrounds entrance that is 
non-compliant with our sidewalk standards and needing addressed. Additionally, there are drainage 
issues as well as trip hazards associated with water gutters and drains that need removed or replaced.  
After meeting with Jones County Fair Board Member, Ben Capron, and General Manager Lucas 
Gobeli it is proposed the following repairs and improvements are made with the following cost share 
options: 
 
 #1 Main Entrance: Replace cracked sections and remove the vertical separations, 

    

Agenda Item: #  
Agenda Date: 1/3/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution for the approval of sidewalk replacement and cost sharing 
with the Great Jones County Fair. 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/27/2021 
Preparer: Britt Smith 
 



This removal and replacement are proposed as a city expense as it is part of the existing sidewalk 
system within the City Park.  It is proposed to be reinstalled at 6” thickness with rebar in leu of the 
traditional 4” thick panels that are subject to damage from heavy vehicle traffic during the Fair.  This 
expense of tear out and replacement was proposed to be at the City’s expense.  It is fair to also suggest 
that the increased thickness is a necessity for the Fair and less beneficial for the City, and the extra 
thickness could be considered for a cost share with the Jones County Fair OR the City could assume 
responsibility for all costs for the repairs as the Fair is addressing some additional drainage issues at 
their expense. 
 
 
 

#2 Main Entrance Drainage: 

 
 
An additional drain is being proposed to be added to the area near the broken panels and will be 
connected to an existing drain that directs the water over the far hillside.  This project is being 
proposed as a Jones County Fair expense.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



#3 French Drain project: 

 
 
In addition to the drain, there is an existing swale that was designed to channel water away from the 
area and direct it over the far hillside.  It is being proposed that the channel be excavated, with 
perforated tile installed and packed with washed rock and recontoured to more satisfactorily drain 
water from the area.  This project is being proposed as a Jones County Fair expense. 
 

 
#4 Panel Replacement on Sidewalk path to Grandstands: 

 



 
On the sidewalk section leading down to the Grandstands, there are two panels that are non-compliant 
with our sidewalk standards.  Given the destination of the sidewalk it is being proposed that this be a 
Jones County Fair Expense. 
 

#5 Gutter/Drain removal: 

 
 
In addition to being a trip hazard, the drain has also been capped after a new wall section was poured 
several years ago around the racetrack.  It is being proposed to remove gutter section and fill back with 
dirt for an even transition.  This is being proposed as a Jones County Fair expense. 
 
With the significant expense the Jones County Fair is proposing for their portion of the project, they 
will be obtaining bids.  Since the drainage improvements must be completed prior to the sidewalk 
repairs, I recommend that the City allow the Jones County Fair to oversee all portions of the project, 
and that the City reimburse the Jones County Fair for our proposed portion upon the completion and 
inspection of the project. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  I recommend that the Council consider approval of the resolution with the 
suggested cost share options.  



The City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA 
 

RESOLUTION #  
 

Approving of Sidewalk Replacement and Cost  
Sharing with Great Jones County Fair 

 
WHEREAS,  The Jones County Fair Board, through the Jones County Fair Board 
Member, Ben Capron, and General Manager Lucas Gobeli,, has approached the City and 
requested permission to make improvements to  sidewalks and drainage issues, and  
 
WHEREAS, The general proposal is to make the following improvements:  
 

1. Main Entrance: Replace cracked sections and remove the vertical separations.  
This removal and replacement would be a city expense, as it is part of the 
existing sidewalk system within the City Park.  It will be reinstalled at 6” 
thickness with rebar in lieu of the traditional 4” thick panels that are subject to 
damage from heavy vehicle traffic during the Fair.   

 
2. Main Entrance Drainage:  An additional drain will be added to the area near 

the broken panels and will be connected to an existing drain that directs the 
water over the far hillside. This part of the project would be a Jones County 
Fair Board expense.  

 
3. French Drain project:  In addition to the drain, as stated above, there is an 

existing swale that was designed to channel water away from the area and 
direct it over the far hillside. The channel would be excavated, with perforated 
tile installed and packed with washed rock and recontoured to more 
satisfactorily drain water from the area.  This part of the project would be a 
Jones County Fair Board expense. 

 
4. Panel Replacement on Sidewalk path to Grandstands:  On the sidewalk 

section leading down to the Grandstands, there are two panels that are non-
compliant with our sidewalk standards. Given the destination of the sidewalk, 
This part of the project would be a Jones County Fair Board expense. 

 
5. Gutter/Drain removal: Along the sidewalk, from the Main Entrance to the 

Grandstands, the gutter and drain would be removed.  In addition to being a 
trip hazard, the drain has also been capped after a new wall section was 
poured several years ago around the racetrack. The gutter would be removed 
and back filled with dirt for an even transition. This part of the project would 
be a Jones County Fair Board expense. 

  
 
WHEREAS, The Fair Board will obtain bids for improvements above and oversee all 
portions of the Project.  



 
 
WHEREAS, The City will reimburse the Jones County Fair Board for our proposed 
portion upon completion and inspection of the project 
 
WHEREAS, The Fair Board desires to move as quickly as possible on this project to 
ensure completion for as much of the summer season as is possible and in advance of the 
Fair, and 

 
WHEREAS, The Council finds that the proposed improvements are in the best interest 
of the City and the Fair Board and will add value to the Park grounds. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the proposed improvements to the Park’s sidewalks and drainage as 
proposed by the Jones County Fair Board. 

 
IN THE TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for the City 
of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 3rd day of 
January, 2022. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 

     Dave Goedken, Mayor   
 
Attest:  
 
_________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  Mayor Dave Goedken asked that these items be placed under Mayor’s Reports for Council 
discussion: 
 
 
1. Council Appointments:  All Council members serve as liaison to one or more City Committees, 
Commissions, or Boards, as well as several County and Regional positions. With one new Council 
member coming on board, there are options to move appointments around, if the Council members so 
wish. Please indicate if you would like to stay with your current appointments, or change one or more 
appointments. 
 
2. Budget Review Meetings:  City Council generally reviews the budget by Department, with the 
Department Head present to discuss their budget requests for the coming year. Those meetings need to 
scheduled soon, and there are several options to choose: 
 

a) A series of short evening meetings from say 5:30 to 7:30; 
b) A series of workshops following the next several Council meetings; 
c) A Saturday meeting beginning at in the morning and running until done; 
d) Other options? 

 
3.  Council Goal Setting and Training:  Mayor Goedken will be sharing some of his thoughts on 
running Council meetings and some training materials that may be insightful to other Council 
members. There also a question if the Council wishes to update their goals and/or Strategic Plan (copy 
attached). Council discussion is invited. 
 

Agenda Item: # 9 
Agenda Date: 01/03/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Mayor Reports – Discussion of Council Appointments, Scheduling 
Budget review meetings and Council Training 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Council Discussion 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 12/28/21 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



















 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item: # 10 - 17 
Agenda Date: 1/03/2022 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Reports 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Reports; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
   
 

  

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 1/28/2021 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 


	A 01 a  agenda
	A 02 a December 20, 2021 minutes
	A 03 a December 30 2021 Payroll
	Sheet1

	A 04 a Clain list
	B 02 a Communication Page Oak Street Devt Agreement Approval Jan 03
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 1-4
	Agenda Date: 01/03/2022

	B 02 b Res Approving.Development.Agreement(Oak Street Manufacturing) (002)
	B 02 c Oak Street Expansion 2021 Agreement 11-16-2021 Draft
	B 04 b Urban.Renewal.Plan.Amendment(Oak Street Manufacturing ) (002)
	D 05 a Communication Designating Express
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 5
	Agenda Date: 01/03/2022

	D 05 b res Designating.Express(Official.Paper)01.03.2022
	RESOLUTION #
	WHEREAS, the City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated City within Jones County, Iowa; and


	D 06 a Communication Page Setting Jan 17 Hearing 449 Sycamore
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 6
	Agenda Date: 01/03/2022

	D 06 b Resolution(Setting.P.Hearing.Sale.449.North.Sycamore.Bradley.lot) Revised
	IN THE NAME AND BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MONTICELLO, IOWA

	D 06 c 449 Sycamore RFP (003)
	D 07 a FY '23 Dispatch contract (002)
	D 07 b res Dispatch.Agreement(FY.23)
	RESOLUTION #
	WHEREAS, the City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated City within Jones County, Iowa, and


	D 08 a Communication Page Fairgrounds Sidewalk Repairs
	Agenda Item: #
	Agenda Date: 1/3/2022
	City Council Meeting

	D 08 b Park.Sidewalk.Drainage.Improvements(Fair)01.03.2022
	RESOLUTION #
	WHEREAS, The Council finds that the proposed improvements are in the best interest of the City and the Fair Board and will add value to the Park grounds.

	G 01 a Communication Page Mayor Reports
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 9
	Agenda Date: 01/03/2022

	G 01 b Monticello Council 2020 Strategic Plan and Goals
	H 01 a Communication Reports
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 10 - 17
	Agenda Date: 1/03/2022


